
Licensing Committee 
Agenda

Wyre Borough Council
Date of Publication: 18 March 2020

Please ask for : Duncan Jowitt
Democratic Services and

Councillor Development Officer
Tel: 01253 887608

Licensing Committee meeting on Thursday, 26 March 2020 at 6.00 pm
in the Council Chamber  - Civic Centre

1.  Apologies

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members will disclose any pecuniary and any other significant interests 
they may have in relation to the matters under consideration.

3.  Confirmation of minutes

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Licensing Committee held on 27 February 2020.

4.  Application for a new Premises Licence - 17 Breck Road, Poulton-
le-Fylde

(Pages 3 - 46)

Report of the Corporate Director Environment

5.  Coronavirus - temporary meeting arrangements (Pages 47 - 50)

Report of the Corporate Director Environment

6.  Exclusion of the public and press

In accordance with Paragraph 11 of the Access to Information Rules in 
Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive has 
determined that the report submitted under item 7 of this agenda is 
“Not for Publication” because it contains “exempt information”, as 
defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

If the Committee agrees that the public and press should be excluded 
for this item, it will need to pass the following resolution:

 “That the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst 
agenda item 7 is considered, as it refers to exempt information as 
defined in category 1 (information relating to any individual) of Part 1 of 

Public Document Pack



Schedule 12(a) of the Local Government Act, 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Variation Order 2006 
and, that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information”.

7.  Wyre dual driver licence holder with a recent complaint (Pages 51 - 86)

Report of the Corporate Director Environment



Report of: Meeting Date
Mark Billington,

Corporate Director 
Environment

Licensing Committee 26 March 2020

Application for a new Premises Licence – 17 Breck Road, Poulton-le-Fylde

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To assist Members to determine an application submitted under section 
17 of the Licensing Act 2003 by Mrs Seema K Dalvi, for a new premises 
licence.

2. Outcomes

2.1 That the application for a new premises licence be determined.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That Members consider the application and determine whether the 
granting of this application would adversely impact on the Licensing 
Objectives.

4. Background

4.1 On Wednesday 5 February 2020 an application was received from Mrs 
Seema K Dalvi for a new premises licence in respect of 17 Breck Road, 
Poulton-le Fylde, FY6 7AA (Appendix 1).

4.2 The applicant wishes to sell alcohol between midday and 22:30 hours 
and to be open to the public between 10:00 and 23:00 hours, on each 
day of the week. 

4.3 The premises previously traded as a pharmacy and the applicant was 
granted a change of use to A3 (Café / Restaurant) under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, on 31st January 2020 (Appendix 2).

4.4 The application was advertised in accordance with Regulations and at the 
end of the consultation period there were five outstanding representations 
(Appendix 3). 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



4.5 Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, requires the 
Licensing Authority to hold a hearing to consider an application and any 
relevant representations, within twenty working days following the end of 
the statutory twenty-eight day consultation period, which ended on 3 March 
2020.

5. Key issues and proposals

5.1 The applicant wishes to create a licensed restaurant on the ground floor of 
the premises catering for around 50 covers. The business’s main focus will 
be the food and the alcohol provision will be limited to diners and those 
ordering take away food.

5.2 The premises has two entry points, the main one directly onto Breck Road 
and the second providing an emergency exit onto the side alleyway from 
the rear of the premises as shown on the plan attached to the application 
form.

5.3 Rep 1 is from the proprietor of a takeaway on the opposite side of Breck 
Road that is licensed until 00:30 on Sundays, 01:00 Monday to Thursday 
and 03:00 hours on Friday and Saturday nights. He is concerned that the 
restaurant will further contribute towards the disorder and nuisance that he 
says feature regularly in the area.

5.4 Rep 2 is from the manager of the Indian restaurant next door to the 
applicant’s premises which is licensed to trade until midnight Sunday to 
Thursday and 01:00 hours on Friday and Saturdays. He raises concerns 
about the suitability of the rear fire escape route and the potential for the 
new premises to further contribute to nuisance and crime in the area.

5.5 Rep 3 is from a delivery driver for a takeaway on the opposite side of Breck 
Road who is concerned that another licensed premises will contribute to 
nuisance and disorder in the area.

5.6 Rep 4 is from a local resident who is concerned that the addition of another 
licensed premises will increase public nuisance. She included photographs 
of the vomit she encountered on the footway near to the nail bar on a recent 
visit to the area by way of an example of the existing problems.

5.7 Rep 5 is from a resident who reported seeing drug use in the alley next to 
the nail bar after leaving another restaurant on Breck Road and is 
concerned that another licensed venue will cause further nuisance and not 
be safe.

5.8 An objection to this application was emailed on 11 February from the 
occupier of 15B Breck Road (Appendix 4) but was rejected as irrelevant 
as it related to the demand for another licensed premises in the area, 
especially not one offering the same cuisine as an existing business. 

Page 4



5.9 The closing date for objections was Tuesday 3 March 2020 and on Friday 
6 March three further representations against the granting of this licence 
were received by the Council. The senders have been advised that their 
objections were submitted too late to be considered, but as each relates to 
similar issues to those already raised by the five valid representations, the 
out of time submissions have been included in APPENDIX 4 for 
completeness.

5.10 The Police have no objections to the granting of this application although 
they have agreed on a number of additional conditions with the applicant 
during the consultation period (Appendix 5).

5.11 Environmental Heath have no objections to the granting of this application 
and have similarly agreed on a number of additions conditions with the 
applicant (Appendix 6).

5.12 Planning have confirmed that they have no objections to the granting of 
this application (Appendix 7).

5.13 Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service have confirmed that they have no 
objection to the granting of a new premises licence (Appendix 8).

5.14 A list of all the agreed conditions that the licence will be subject to, if 
granted are reproduced at Appendix 9.
 

5.15  A location plan is provided at Appendix 10.
  

5.16 When considering the application Members should take into account the 
Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy. The following paragraphs are 
particularly relevant to this application.

10.3    Conditions etc.
14.3    Prevention of public nuisance
18.      Need for licensed premises
19.      Cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises 

5.17 Members are also directed to the Statutory Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and in particular the following sections: 9.1, 
9.3, 9.4, 9.37-9.40, 9.42-9.44 and 10.8-10.10 which are reproduced at 
Appendix 11.

5.18 After having regard to all the representations, the council’s Statement of 
Policy and the Statutory Guidance, the Committee must consider whether 
granting the application in the terms applied for, would undermine any of 
the licensing objectives.

Page 5



5.19 If it is satisfied that the licensing objectives would not be undermined, it 
must grant the licence in the terms applied for.

5.20 If it is however satisfied that granting the application would have the 
potential to undermine one or more of the licensing objectives, it must then 
consider what, if any, steps would be appropriate to secure the promotion 
of the licensing objectives.

It may take any of the following steps:
 Grant a licence subject to such conditions that the authority considers 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
 Exclude from the scope of the licence, any of the licensable activities 

to which the application relates (this can include revising the permitted 
hours for licensable activities).

 Reject the whole or part of the application.

5.21 The applicant and objectors have all been invited to attend the hearing and 
have been sent a copy of this report and notice of the hearing procedure.

Financial and legal implications

Finance There are no financial implications directly associated with this 
application.

Legal

Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to the Magistrates 
Court within 21 days if they are aggrieved by the decision. The 
hearing should be conducted following the principles of natural 
justice and in accordance with the Council’s own hearing procedure.

Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with an 
x.

risks/implications  / x risks/implications  / x
community safety  asset management x

equality and diversity x climate change x

sustainability x ICT x

health and safety x data protection x

Processing Personal Data

Page 6



In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also 
required.  If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection 
and processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a 
new working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed 
and signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance 
with the Data Protection Act 2018. 

report author telephone no. email date
Niky Barrett 01253 887236 Niky.barrett@wyre.gov.uk 9 March 2020

List of background papers:

name of document date where available for inspection

List of appendices

Appendix 1 – Copy of application
Appendix 2 – Copy of planning consent
Appendix 3 – Representations 
Appendix 4 – Rejected representations
Appendix 5 – Conditions agreed with Lancashire Constabulary
Appendix 6 – Conditions agreed with Environmental Health
Appendix 7 – Planning consultation response
Appendix 8 – LFRS consultation response
Appendix 9 – Draft Annex 2 conditions
Appendix 10 – Location plan
Appendix 11 – Extract from Statutory Guidance

Page 7

mailto:Niky.barrett@wyre.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Report of: Meeting Date

Mark Billington, 
Corporate Director 

Environment
Licensing Committee 26 March 2020

Coronavirus – temporary meeting arrangements

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To agree temporary arrangements for the conduct of Licensing 
Committee meetings while Government advice is to avoid non-essential 
contact due to the spread of the coronavirus.

2. Outcomes

2.1 The risk of exposure to coronavirus will be minimised and councillors and 
officers safeguarded from COVID-19 to the greatest possible extent.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That, until government advice relaxes the restrictions, all upcoming 
meetings of the Licensing Committee be conducted with the minimum 
numbers required to achieve both a quorum and approximate political 
balance.

3.2 That meetings of the committee continue to be held in the coming months 
only whenever an essential decision is required and in those instances 
with a maximum of five members of the committee participating, whilst 
remaining quorate, to achieve an approximate political balance (three 
Conservatives, one Labour and one Brexit).

3.3 That the authority to take decisions on any minor issues/applications 
which currently would have to be submitted to the Licensing Committee 
be delegated to the Head of Environment and Community Safety after 
consultation with the Chairman until such time as the government advice 
relaxes the restrictions.

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



4. Background

4.1 The World Health Organisation has declared a pandemic and countries 
including the UK are taking action to contain and delay the spread of the 
coronavirus. The purpose of the measures the government is putting in 
place is to slow down the spread of COVID-19 to reduce pressure on 
health and other services. It is critical that we also take a precautionary 
approach and follow the strict advice already issued by Public Health 
England and Central Government.

4.2 Corporate Management Team and the Tactical Officer Group are looking 
at the council’s critical services on an ongoing basis and putting business 
continuity arrangements into place in readiness. The council will issue 
further guidance as the situation develops. It is likely that national public 
health advice will develop further around “social distancing” measures, 
which includes maintaining at least 1 metre distance from anyone who 
may be infected.

4.3 Until further notice, the only committee meetings that the council will hold 
are those statutory or regulatory meetings where an essential decision is 
required. Democratic Services will continue to monitor the situation on a 
meeting-by-meeting basis and determine whether the council is required 
to hold the meeting or whether to postpone or cancel.

4.4 Any meetings held will be in the Council Chamber and subject to social 
distancing guidance. All councillors aged over 70 years and/or with an 
underlying health condition should not attend the limited meetings that 
will continue to be held.

4.5 To limit the risk of exposure and safeguard councillors and officers, 
meetings will be held with the minimum quorum required, which for 
committees of 14 members is four. However, as far as is possible, with 
the co-operation of the leaders of the three political groups, an 
approximation of political balance will be maintained if meetings are held 
with a maximum of 5 members. Some flexibility will be required as the 
situation develops.

5. Key issues and proposals

5.1 The Democratic Services Team and Licensing Officer, in consultation 
with Corporate Management Team and the Political Party Leaders will 
continue to monitor the ongoing situation and review these arrangements 
with the intention of resuming normal committee business at the earliest 
possible opportunity.

Page 48



Financial and legal implications

Finance There are no financial implications associated with the 
recommendations of this report.

Legal The arrangements will ensure that the council’s legal and 
statutory obligations continue to be met.

Other risks/implications: checklist

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist 
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There 
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues 
marked with a x.

risks/implications  / x risks/implications  / x
community safety  asset management x
equality and diversity x climate change x
sustainability x ICT x
health and safety  data protection x

Processing Personal Data

In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also 
required.  If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection 
and processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a 
new working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed 
and signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance 
with the Data Protection Act 2018. 

report author telephone no. email date

Duncan Jowitt 01253 887608 duncan.jowitt@wyre.gov.uk 17 March 2020

List of background papers:

name of document date where available for inspection

None

Page 49

mailto:duncan.jowitt@wyre.gov.uk


List of appendices

None

Page 50



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Application for a new Premises Licence - 17 Breck Road, Poulton-le-Fylde
	Appendix 1 - 11

	5 Coronavirus - temporary meeting arrangements
	7 Wyre dual driver licence holder with a recent complaint
	JoyceAppendices updated
	Joyce statements from ACE staff


